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March 29, 2022

Mariana Zimmermann, Senior Associate
Placeworks
700 South Flower Street, Suite 600
Los Angeles, CA 90017

REQUEST FOR SERVICE PROVIDER INFORMATION FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT
FOR THE NORWALK ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT-CIVIC CENTER SPECIFIC PLAN PROJECT

Dear Mariana Zimmermann:

This is in response to your request for service provider information for the Environmental Impact Report 
(EIR) for the Norwalk Entertainment District-Civic Center Specific Plan project which proposes the 
development of up to 400 residential units and up to 150,000 square feet of commercial use.  Attached is 
a report of LA County Library’s analysis of the development and the projected impact to services.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact Elsa Muñoz at (562) 940-8450 or 
EMunoz@library.lacounty.gov. 

Very best,

Skye Patrick
County Librarian

SP:YDR:GR:EM

c: Jesse Walker-Lanz, Assistant Director, Public Services, LA County Library
Grace Reyes, Administrative Deputy, LA County Library

https://lacounty.sharepoint.com/sites/publiclibrary/docs/staffservices/Documents/EIR/Norwalk Entertainment District-Civic Center/Response 
v1.docx



LA COUNTY LIBRARY

NORWALK ENTERTAINMENT DISTRICT-CIVIC CENTER SPECIFIC PLAN PROJECT

1. Please summarize existing library facilities and resources (library building square footages, 
collection volume, capacity, computer labs, audio books, e-books, etc.) that will serve the project 
site in the following table.  
 
This project is within the service area of the Norwalk Library, located at 12350 Imperial Hwy., 
Norwalk, CA 90650, a facility with 33,749 sq. ft. of space, a collection of 115,549 books, magazines, 
and media, and 30 computers (as of June 30, 2021). 
 

2. Are there any existing plans to expand library facilities and/or resources for the City? If so, please 
describe these planned expansions. 
 
LA County Library does not have plans for expanding the Norwalk Library. 
 

3. What generation factors or standards are used by the Los Angeles County Library to estimate 
library facility and resource requirement (e.g., square feet of library facility floor areas per capita 
and book volumes per capita)? 
 
LA County Library service level guidelines entail a minimum of 0.50 gross square foot of library 
facility space per capita, 3.0 items (books and other library materials) per capita for regional libraries 
and 2.75 items per capita for community libraries, and 1.0 public access computer per 1,000 people 
served. 

 
4. What impact (if any) will additional development that would be accommodated by the proposed 

project have on the LA County Library’s ability to provide library service to the City? 
 
Norwalk Library is a regional library and based on the service guidelines does not currently meet 
the minimum requirements for the population of this service area.  The current deficiency is 67,370 
collection items, and 31 public access computers. 

The proposed project involves the construction of up to 400 residential units with a population 
increase of approximately 1,252 which creates a need for an additional 3,756 collection items, and 
1 public access computer. 

The table below illustrates the impact of the proposed population growth from the Norwalk 
Entertainment District-Civic Center Specific Plan project to the LA County Library service level 
guidelines. To fully mitigate this growth LA County Library estimates the total cost to be $106,968. 

 

 

 

 

 



Norwalk Entertainment District-
Civic Center Specific Plan Project  

Impact Per Capita 
(population of 1,252)

Estimated Costs Total Costs 

a. Building 626 $0* $0 

b. Land (4:1 land to building ratio) 2,504 $0* $0

c. Collections  3,756 $28 $105,168 

d. Public Access Computers 1 $1,800 $1,800 

Total $106,968

*Norwalk Library currently has sufficient facility space to accommodate the proposed increased population.

To meet the service demands of the current population and the proposed Norwalk Entertainment 
District-Civic Center Specific Plan project the library will require a total of 186,675 collection items, 
62 public access computers, and 31,113 sq. ft of facility space. 

Given the LA County Library’s e-books, audiobooks, and internet resources, do you anticipate 
physical expansion of the library facilities due to the proposed development of up to 400 units? 

LA County Library does not anticipate physical expansion of library facilities due to the proposed 
development. 
 

5. How are the library’s operation and improvements funded? Any library impact fees imposed to 
new development? 
 
As a special fund department, LA County Library is primarily financed by the collection of a dedicated 
share of property taxes from properties located in Los Angeles County and serviced by the LA County 
Library. Other revenues include a general fund contribution, a parcel tax, grants, and fees. 
 
For all new residential dwellings located within the unincorporated areas of the County served by 
the LA County Library, LA County Library collects a one-time Library Facilities Mitigation Fee 
(Developer Fee) at the time building permits are requested. The current Developer Fees are as 
follows, by Library Planning Area, these fees are subject to a CPI increase effective July 1: 
 

FY 2021-22 Library Facilities Mitigation Fee Schedule 

Planning Area Fee per Dwelling Unit 

Area 1 - Santa Clarita Valley $1,010 

Area 2 - Antelope Valley $978 

Area 3 - West San Gabriel Valley $1,021 

Area 4 - East San Gabriel Valley $1,008 

Area 5 - Southeast $1,011 

Area 6 - Southwest $1,018 

Area 7 - Santa Monica Mountains $1,013 

 



The Norwalk Entertainment District-Civic Center Specific Plan is within the Library’s Planning Area 5 
– Southeast, current Developer Fee is $1,011 per dwelling unit for a total of $404,400 ($1,011 x 400 
dwelling units). Since the proposed development is located within the City of Norwalk it is not 
subject to a Library Facilities Mitigation Fee. 
 
LA County Library also collects an annual special tax which is levied on parcels within 10 cities 
(Cudahy, Culver City, Duarte, El Monte, La Cañada Flintridge, Lakewood, Lomita, Lynwood, 
Maywood, and West Hollywood) and unincorporated areas serviced by LA County Library. The 
Special Tax Rate for FY 2021-22 is $32.55 per parcel. Nevertheless, the project is not subject to 
Special Tax. 
 

6. Please provide any additional comments you wish to make regarding the proposed project. 
 
The proposed commercial component will also impact the library if the people who work, but do 
not live, in the area use local library services throughout their day, therefore adding to the number 
of resources that will be needed. 
 
There are no mitigation factors for the impact that this project will have on library services since it 
is not subject to a Library Facilities Mitigation Fee or Special Tax. LA County Library proposes 
discussions with City representatives and developers regarding mitigation efforts and support for 
the continued enhancement and delivery of library services to the residents of the City of Norwalk. 
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